
Regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport was held in the Conference 
Room, Municipal Building, 49 State Street, Brockport, New York, October 17, 2005 at 7:00pm. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Morton Wexler, Trustee/Vice Mayor Carrie L. Maziarz, Trustee Maria C. Castańeda, 
Trustee David J. Wagenhauser, Trustee Mary Jo Nayman, DPW Superintendent Harry G. Donahue, 
Building/Zoning Officer Scott C. Zarnstorff, Treasurer / Village Manager Ian M. Coyle, Clerk Leslie A. 
Morelli. 
 
EXCUSED:  Police Chief Daniel P. Varrenti, Fire Chiefs 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Village Attorney Thomas D. Calandra, Deputy Village Attorney Frank A. Aloi, Labor 
Attorney David W. Lippitt, Ray & Jackie Morris, Ken Pike, Jim & Joan Hamlin, Rich Miller, Rudy Aceto, 
Brandon St. John, Merv Beaney, John Lessord, Fred Webster, Linda Borrayo, Norm GianCursio            
            
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Wexler called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
REVIEW OF MEETING MINUTES:  Mayor Wexler called for any additions or corrections to the minutes 
of the workshop meeting held September 26, 2005 and the regular meeting held October 3, 2005.   
 

 Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried that the minutes of 
the September 26, 2005 workshop meeting be approved as written. 
 

 Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried that the minutes of 
the meeting held October 3, 2005, be approved as amended. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETINGS:  None 
 
GUESTS:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
1.  Rich Miller said he had 3 issues to address.  The first was that he spoke with Mayor Wexler, Vice     
      Mayor Maziarz, Manager Coyle and SUNY VP DiPasquale with the suggestion for a Village wide     
       wireless computer system network (WiFi).  He said this was done successfully in Canandaigua.  
He       said the new SUNY Brockport President might agree that it is revolutionary technology that 
could be       provided as a perk within 5 miles at little cost.  R. Miller said it will not replace broadband 
but could         change the face of communications here.  This might be a project for the Good Neighbor 
Committee      that was formed to improve Town/Gown relations.  R. Miller commented that the 
Village’s                        Webmaster is excellent.  Trustee Maziarz said she would be meeting with 
representatives from               Canandaigua to discuss theirs and what equipment was needed.  She 
said regarding the                        Town/Gown aspect, Cobleskill did such through a joint effort.  She 
said this might be the time since        there are upgrades of new dorms and a recreation center at 
SUNY Brockport.  She said the                    Welcome Center at Harvester Park would have wireless for 
walkers, bikers, boaters with laptops and      PDA’s. 
 
     R. Miller shared that Grandpa Martin’s Pickles will not be relocating to 49 Clinton Street as planned. 
      He has leased the space to Pete Smith for the manufacture and sale of hockey equipment and        
       apparel.  He said this is less innocuous than the production of pickles.  There may be a possibility 
of      5 to 6 employees.  He will be making application to the Planning Board.   
 
     R. Miller expressed concern of 17 of his realty signs being stolen from Main Street properties in the  
      last 6 months.  At approximately $40 each, this is costly.  He said the Village is only 2.2 square 
miles      and he would hope that at least Main Street would be patrolled regularly.  He suggested pc 
cameras      be utilized to see what’s going on. 
 
2.  Rudy Aceto, representing the Western Monroe Historical Society shared that each year they put on 
a      Fourth of July celebration at the Morgan Manning House for the community.  It is not a fundraiser 
for      the Morgan Manning House.  It is costly and they simply hope to break even each year.  He said 
the       Village and Town used to each contribute $300 to defray the cost of the music and such.  
However,       they have not done so in the recent past.  He asked that the Village consider doing so 
next year              when they work on the budget.  He said he would follow up with a written request as 
the event nears. 
 
3.  Dennis Calkins reviewed his application for a Hawking and Peddling permit to have a vending cart    
      called Heavy’s Hots on the Village sidewalk in front of the Post Office to sell hot dogs, burgers,        
       sausage and chicken.  He requested Mondays through Fridays 10am to 3pm and Thursday, Friday 
       and Saturday nights from 11pm to 3am. 
 
     Mayor Wexler asked if he had run a vending cart in the past.  D. Calkins said he runs one weekdays 
     outside the Federal Building in Rochester.  Trustee Wagenhauser said years ago there was a cart 



on      weekend nights.  Clerk Morelli said there was one last year called The Patio Grill in front of the 
Post   
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 17, 2005 continued……………………………..………..page 2 
 
     Office.  He never renewed his permit.  Mayor Wexler said for a short time this past summer Chianti’s 
     tried a vending cart in front of their restaurant.  Trustee Wagenhauser said he is not necessarily        
      against it, but commented that the vending cart would be competing with various merchants in the   
       downtown district that have a storefront and pay taxes.  Trustee Maziarz said this would be an        
        extremely busy location on weekdays.  She questioned the proposed location.  D. Calkins said 
south      of the Post Office stairway.  The sidewalk is approximately 15 feet wide.  Trustee 
Wagenhauser             asked the size of the cart.  D. Calkins said approximately 3 ½ feet wide by 8 feet 
long.  He said he          runs a neat and clean operation and has done so for years. 
 
     Trustee Maziarz said she has no problem permitting the nights requested, but is concerned with the 
      daytime competition.  Trustee Castańeda commented that it is free enterprise and the customer       
       should choose.  Mayor Wexler said he agrees, but that storefronts contribute to the tax base.          
        Trustee Nayman asked if there is a permit fee.  Clerk Morelli said the applicant has requested a 6- 
         month permit.  The fee will be $250.  Mayor Wexler asked if it would be the simple cart without a   
          tent.  D. Calkins said yes.  Trustee Maziarz said he would need to pick up and take away the 
trash          generated.  D. Calkins said he would do so.  He provided a copy of his Monroe County 
Health                 Department certificate. 
 
→ Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded to grant a hawking and peddling permit to 
Heavy’s Hots for a food service cart for a period of 6 months to operate 3 nights per week including 
Thursday, Friday and Saturday from 11pm to 3am on the Village sidewalk in front of the US Post Office.  
 
     D. Calkins thanked the Board.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
⇒ At 7:25pm Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried that the 
Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport enter into an executive session to discuss a personnel 
matter (Police Chief contract). 
 
I, Leslie A. Morelli, Clerk for the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport, do hereby certify that the 
Board met in an executive session and did discuss the matters as expressed in their motion, and I 
further certify that no formal action regarding public funds was taken thereon. 
 

_________________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 
⇒ At 8:25pm Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried that the 
Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport exit executive session and return to the regular meeting. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
A. PUBLIC WORKS – Superintendent Harry G. Donahue  

1. Appoint Volunteer SPPP Coordinator – H. Donahue said Phase II of the Federal Stormwater 
Regulations include appointing a Stormwater Pollution Practices Coordinator regarding 
outreach and awareness efforts.  The Village advertised for a volunteer.  Only one person, 
Betsy Johnson, expressed interest.  She has experience in such and will be moving to the area 
from Maryland. 

 
→ Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried to appoint Betsy 
Johnson to the volunteer position of Stormwater Pollution Practices Coordinator. 
 
       2.  Water Main Flushing – H. Donahue shared that the Village advertised this semi annual event.    
             As part of routine maintenance, the DPW periodically cleans the mains and flushes out 
sediment             accumulations.  This ensures a safe and healthy supply of drinking water.  Flushing 
operations               are 9am to 1pm today, tomorrow and Wednesday.  
 
       3.  Park Avenue Flag – Trustee Nayman asked the status of installing the new flag that BISCO       
             donated.  H. Donahue said the rope is there now and the flag can be raised by end of week.     
              Trustee Nayman asked that BISCO be notified for a photo opportunity. 
 
            Trustee Maziarz mentioned that the flag at the Welcome Center at Harvester Park was hanging 
             by one hook.  H. Donahue said that has been taken care of.  He said he would make a copy of 
              the flag key for the Welcome Center. 
 
       4.  Street Signs – Trustee Castańeda informed H. Donahue that the street name sign is obscured   
             on Erie Street toward Beach Street and that the street sign for Owens Road is on the telephone 
             pole.  H. Donahue said they would take a look at the Erie Street sign.  He said they have           
                   permission from Niagara Mohawk to locate the Owens Road sign on the pole.  



                                                                                
B.   POLICE DEPARTMENT – Chief Daniel P. Varrenti (excused) 

   
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 17, 2005 continued……………………..……………….page 3 
 
C. BUILDING / ZONING / CODE ENFORCEMENT - Scott C. Zarnstorff 

1. Software – S. Zarnstorff shared that he has placed the order for a building/zoning/code             
 enforcement software program.  The vendor will train he and Michelle.  They hope to be fully 
up and running with it the first of the year. 
 
Trustee Castańeda said Trustee Wagenhauser had offered to design a simple program at the 
last meeting.  S. Zarnstorff said he appreciates the gracious offer, but it would be rather time 
consuming for Trustee Wagenhauser and the department really needs proven, professional 
building/zoning/code enforcement software.  He said he received a demonstration and is 
confident that this will greatly improve the office’s efficiency and free up man-hours to be in the 
field, conduct plan reviews and implement programs.  Trustee Castańeda asked the cost.  S. 
Zarnstorff said $2,800 covered in his budget.  
 

2. Jimmy Z’s Hawking & Peddling Permit – Trustee Nayman asked the status of using a tent.  S. 
Zarnstorff said they did not use it this past weekend.  He spoke with Steve Zisovski who 
agreed to use a simple table umbrella when needed, not the tent. 
 

D.  FIRE /AMBULANCE / COMMUNICATIONS - Chief Christian A. McCullough (excused) 
       1.   Membership Adds/Drops/Transfers – Clerk Morelli asked the Board to consider approving the   
              following drops: Tina Hover, Gregory Schaeffer the following adds: Tyler Dawson to Fire          
                Company 6 and Albert Faling to fire Company 2 the following exempt certificates: Scott 
Elliott,                 Christopher Ortiz, Kathleen Way, and the following Explorer Post Adds:  William Day, 
Sarah                   Pike, Michelle Henry. 
 
→   Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried approving the 
previously mentioned adds, drops, Explorer adds and exempt certificates. 
 
       2.  Call Load – Mayor Wexler read a written report from the Chiefs Office: 
 
            Fire incidents year to date: 696 
            EMS calls year to date: 1,311 
   Total  2,007 
 
 -Fire incident wise, we have been extremely quiet – no calls of any consequence and even the       
          routine gas calls and automatic alarm calls are way down!  We do expect a busy winter season   
            due to the cost of energy driving people to use alternative heating sources such as woodstoves, 
            fireplaces and other portable heating devices. 
 -We thank the Village administration for working hard to get our roof project started.  The project is 
         slated to start Monday, October 24th and be completed in 7 to 8 workdays. 
 -The Thermal Imaging Cameras purchased with the grant from Assemblyman Reilich arrived in      
          August.  Our people continue to make themselves familiar with them through on-going training.    
           They have been placed on two of the busiest pumpers. 
 -Fire Prevention Week activities went well.  Our first Open House in many years went over well.     
           We teamed up with the Hamlin and Walker Fire Departments for our elementary school activities 
           plus we did some presentations to other community groups and agencies. 
 
E.  TREASURER / VILLAGE MANAGER - Ian M. Coyle 
        1.  Tree Board – resolution on grant – I. Coyle asked the Board to adopt a resolution for a 50%      
              cost-matching grant of $8,080, which would make the Village responsible for $4,040.  The        
               Village’s portion would be in money, not in-kind services.  This would provide a needs             
                 assessment, which will lead to the replacement of trees. 
 
             Trustee Nayman asked if this would involve trees in parks.  I. Coyle said it might.  Trustee         
              Castańeda asked if the 2007 NYSDOT Main Street rehabilitation plan includes trees.  I. Coyle 
                said that is yet to be addressed.  Trustee Castańeda referred to I. Coyle’s memo on the 
subject,              specifically page 3 #7.  I. Coyle said the per capita is per the 2000 Census population. 
 The                     Village meets the threshold.  Trustee Castańeda asked if it would take care of 
replacing                          hollowed out trees.  I. Coyle said yes.   
 

Resolution 
 

→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to adopt the following 
resolution: 

 
RESOLVED, that Ian M. Coyle, Manager of the Village of Brockport is hereby authorized and directed 
to file an application for funds in an amount not to exceed $4,040, and upon approval of said request to 



enter into and execute a project agreement with the New York State Department of Environmental 
Conservation for such financial assistance to the Village of Brockport for a tree inventory grant 
proposal. 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 17, 2005 continued……………………..……………….page 4 
 

2. Approve Seymour Library Budget for 2006 – I. Coyle asked the Board to adopt the Seymour 
Library proposed 2006-2007 budget.  They requested a 3% increase from each of the three 
municipalities.  I. Coyle said he requested a copy of their budget and reviewed it.  The Village’s 
current portion was $151,438.  The 3% increase would bring it to $155,981. 

 
→ Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried to approve the 
Seymour Library’s request for a 3% increase which makes the Village’s portion $155,981. 
 
             Trustee Castańeda asked the status of turning over the Seymour Library’s bookkeeping and     
              payroll duties to either the Town of Sweden or Town of Clarkson.  I. Coyle said efforts thus far 
                have been unsuccessful.  Mayor Wexler said he has a meeting planned with Supervisors       
                 Kimball and Lester next week and will be sure to address it.  Clerk Morelli shared that the 
joint                municipal written agreement among the three municipalities when the new Library was 
built was              that every so many years the bookkeeping and payroll functions would switch.  
However, that                  has not happened.  The Village has always handled these functions and is 
looking for the                        agreement to be honored. (Other joint municipal ventures include the Fire 
Department /                           Ambulance and the Sweden – Clarkson Community Center.  The Village 
handles the Fire and                Ambulance and the Town of Sweden handles the Community Center.) 
 
             Mayor Wexler said there were similar concerns in the past regarding which municipality is         
              responsible for various maintenance issues. 
 
F.   CLERK - Leslie A. Morelli – No report. 
 
G.   ATTORNEY – Thomas D. Calandra / DEPUTY ATTORNEY – Frank A. Aloi  
 
H.   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – Coordinator __________ 

 
SUPPORT BOARDS REPORTS:  
A.   PLANNING BOARD – Chair R. Scott Winner (absent) 
  
B.   LIBRARY BOARD – President Matthew Minor (absent)   
 
C.   ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS – Chair John Bush (absent)  
 
VILLAGE BOARD REPORTS: 
A.   Trustee/Vice Mayor Maziarz  

  1.  Police Department Holiday Appreciation Dinner – In Chief Varrenti’s absence, Trustee Maziarz 
        reported that on November 4th the Brockport Police Department would be holding its first 
annual        “Holiday Appreciation Dinner”.  This dinner will be put on for SPARTAC and Explorer 
members         and their families and all business leaders and private citizens who have sponsored 
various              events for the police department throughout the year.  The event will be held at the 
Exempts on        West Avenue.  The entire dinner will be paid for by Chief Varrenti and the Stetson 
Club.  The            officers and their wives will do the cooking, preparing and donating and serving of 
the food.               From now until the dinner, the explorers will be selling raffle tickets for a 32” 
television.  Fifty              percent of the proceeds will go to the explorer post for future parties, 
equipment, etc., and the           other fifty percent will be used to purchase Christmas gifts for all 
senior citizens at the Lakeside        Beikirch Care Center.  These gifts will then be delivered by the 
explorers, SPARTAC members         and police officers prior to Christmas.  Santa may even make a 
special appearance.  Also                 during this dinner a special award will be presented to a 
sponsor who has donated the most              time, money and services to our community. 
 
 2.   NYS Canal Corps Visit – Trustee Maziarz reported that new New York State Canal Corporation 
        Director Carmella Mantella paid a visit on October 10th.  She said it was a fantastic visit.  She   
         spent two hours touring the Welcome Center at Harvester Park, the towpath to the Smith 
Street        Bridge and discussing potential projects.  Trustee Maziarz read a letter of thanks. 
 
       Trustee Maziarz copied the Village’s 1998 Canal Master Plan for the Board.  She said this plan 
        needs to be updated and efforts made to begin the next phase.  She proposed dissolving the   
         Canal Revitalization Committee that was formed in 2001 and starting a new committee to 
reflect        this administration’s vision.  Mayor Wexler said this would be placed on the next 
workshop                agenda for discussion. 

 
B.   Trustee Castańeda  

1. Village Advisory Committee – Trustee Castańeda thanked Allison Hadley of the Brockport Post 



for speaking with her and writing an article regarding the formation of a Village Advisory 
Committee.  (Those interested should fill out a one-page position interest form and submit to 
the Village Clerk.) 
 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 17, 2005 continued……………………………….……..page 5 
 

2. Code of Ethics Board – Trustee Castańeda said she reviewed the Village’s Code of Ethics and 
would like to move forward with establishing a Code of Ethics Board.  Mayor Wexler said this 
would be placed on the next workshop agenda for discussion. 
 

3. Utica Street Playground fencing – Trustee Castańeda asked I. Coyle if he had looked into 
Andrea Perry’s question regarding liability at the Utica Street Playground since it adjoins the 
parking lot as it relates to fencing.  I. Coyle said he found that it would be treated like any other 
Village property.  There would be no greater exposure with or without the fence. 
 

4. Economic Development – Trustee Castańeda suggested the Board consider alternatives other 
than re-hiring for this part time consultant position.  The budget line for Economic Development 
is $26,800.  Of that, 90% was for salary and 10% for other such as publications, memberships 
and training.  She said the Village could save half of the $26,800 by adopting a 3-tiered 
economic development plan.  This would involve marketing strategies for long term properties, 
web commercials, use of The Little screen for advertising, partnership with SUNY Professors to 
teach grant writing, and use of Stu Brown Associates who has been used in the past for grant 
writing and collects only 10% of grants received.  Trustee Castańeda said Village Manager 
Coyle is more than qualified and willing to assume more grant responsibility.  Mayor Wexler 
said this would be placed on the next workshop agenda for discussion. 

 
C. Trustee Wagenhauser  

1. Parks – Trustee Wagenhauser commented that parks and playgrounds are inherently 
dangerous due to kids using the equipment and apparatus.  He said children would have to be 
clothed in sponges to assure safety.  Trustee Castańeda said she agrees, but was passing 
along a concern from the Parks Committee Chair regarding whether fencing is needed at Utica 
Street Playground.  
 

2. Cost Cutting – Cell Phones & Payroll Service – Trustee Wagenhauser said proposals are 
coming in from various companies to get the best price and service. 
 

3. Garbage – Trustee Wagenhauser asked for authorization to hold a public hearing at the next 
meeting to consider a proposal for the Village to put out to bid a contract for refuse collection 
services.  Information will be available for review one week prior to the hearing. 
 

→Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried to schedule a 
public hearing to begin at 7:30pm on Monday, November 7, 2005 to consider a proposal for the Village 
to put out to bid a contract for refuse collection services. 

 
D.    Trustee Nayman  

1. Taxpayer questions – Trustee Nayman said she received several questions from a taxpayer 
and wanted to bring them to the Board.  One is regarding SPARTAC, but she will wait to ask 
Chief Varrenti.  Regarding to the new artwork being donated to the Village, what is the 
estimated cost to the Village for installation, maintenance and insurance.  H. Donahue said 
installation is minimal.  It will take a couple hours of their time.  As far as maintenance is 
concerned, he has no idea but hopes to be informed by the artist.  Clerk Morelli said she 
submitted the estimated value, size and location information to the insurance company today.  
Trustee Nayman said the person also asked if the Village would look into these costs in the 
future prior to accepting donations of art.  Trustee Maziarz commented that the costs to the 
Village should be minimal and she believes is acceptable. 

 
Another question referred to a letter to the editor in the local papers from the former Mayor 
regarding the Police Chief’s contract.  The person questions if what the former Mayor said that 
the current issues are a personal attack or vendetta on D. Varrenti or if it really is an issue with 
the contract.  Mayor Wexler said if the former Mayor can attest to factual information, let her 
answer.  Trustee Maziarz said she does not think that is what the person is asking.  Trustee 
Nayman summarized the question as to whether this is an attack on D. Varrenti or issue with 
the contract.  Trustee Nayman said she certainly hopes it is not taken as an attack.  Trustee 
Maziarz said the 3 Board members who voted to disaffirm the contract should answer that.  
Mayor Wexler said that was uncalled for.  Trustee Castańeda said it was also not very 
professional and that comments like that should be kept behind closed doors.  Trustee Maziarz 
said she does not understand why this was brought up and further explained that perhaps 
those that voted to disaffirm the contract are best able to answer.  Trustee Wagenhauser asked 
if this was a rhetorical question or if Trustee Nayman is asking for a response from each Board 
member.  Trustee Nayman said she is simply relaying a question from a taxpayer.  If it can be 



answered, so be it. 
 
Another question referred to whether the volunteer greeters at the Welcome Center at 
Harvester Park need to be bonded.  I. Coyle said no.  The Village has bonding for himself, the 
Clerk, the Mayor and blanket coverage to employees or volunteers in a capacity to collect 
money. 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 17, 2005 continued………………………..…………….page 6 
 

2. Parks – Trustee Nayman asked H. Donahue if the equipment authorized for purchase at the 
last meeting for the Evergreen Tot Lot has been ordered.  H. Donahue said it would be ordered 
by November after I. Coyle places a permissive referendum in the paper. 
 
H. Donahue said he should hear back tomorrow regarding the equipment for the Havenwood 
park.  Trustee Nayman asked that the Board consider approving that equipment at the next 
workshop or meeting.  If done at the workshop, they can get the special pricing if ordered by 
November 1st. 

 
Trustee Nayman referred to the damaged equipment at Corbett Park.  She presented a 
proposal at the last meeting to replace the damaged parts.  This totals $3,206.38.  H. Donahue 
concurred it should be done as soon as possible from a safety standpoint. 

 
→ Trustee Nayman moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried authorizing H. 
Donahue to order the equipment outlined for Corbett Park at a total cost of $3,206.38.  
 

3. Attorney Representation – Trustee Nayman asked I. Coyle if he was able to learn what attorney 
former Mayor Matela utilized to represent the Village at the formation of the Police Chief’s 
contract January 2001.  I. Coyle said there was no bill found.  He will confirm and advise.   
 

4. Request NYS Comptroller’s Audit – Trustee Nayman said Trustee Castańeda shared at the last 
meeting a recommendation that came out of the NYCOM Fall Training School they recently 
attended.  This was that a NYS audit be requested so that the Board starts off with a clean bill 
of health.  There is no cost to the Village.  She suggests an audit be done for the last four 
years. I. Coyle said the NYS Comptroller’s Office would determine if they will do an audit and 
for how many years. 

 
→ Trustee Nayman moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried to authorize I. Coyle to 
request an audit from the NYS Comptroller’s Office. 
 

5. Police Chief Contract – Trustee Nayman proposed the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Brockport Village Board hereby establishes the terms and conditions of 

employment of Village Police Chief Daniel P. Varrenti to be those terms and conditions set forth in an 
attachment to the September 28, 2005 memorandum to Police Chief Varrenti from Mayor Morton 
Wexler, a copy of which is attached and incorporated by reference in its entirety into this resolution, 
with such terms and conditions of employment taking effect on October 17, 2005, unless otherwise 
specifically indicated. 
 
Salary: 
Retroactive to August 16, 2005 a salary of $97,197 prorated for the remainder of the 2005 calendar 
year and through May 31, 2006.  The Chief’s annual salary will be increased by 3% to $100,113 
effective June 1, 2006. 
 
General Salary Provisions: 
Salary to be paid in accordance with standard practices for salaried Village management employees.  
The Chief is not entitled to any additional compensation from the Village above and beyond his 
established salary, for any reason. 
 
Working Hours and Days: 
The Chief is expected to be in attendance and performing duties within the confines of the Village of 
Brockport between the hours of 9:00am and 5:00pm on Mondays through Fridays, except for approved 
leave time and holidays.  The Chief will provide the Mayor with a minimum of 48 hours notice of any 
proposed change in these regular working hours and days, or the performance of duties outside the 
Village of Brockport, with approval of such not being unreasonably withheld.  It is further understood 
that the Chief is on call 24 hours a day, seven days a week, and is expected to perform such duties 
outside of his regular working hours and days as are appropriate to fulfill the duties of Village Chief of 
Police. 
 
Health Insurance: 
None (value of health insurance included in salary). 



 
Term Life Insurance: 
The Village will pay the premium of a Term Life Insurance policy for the Chief with a dollar value of 
$200,000.  The Chief and Village will mutually select the policy provider.  The Chief will name the 
beneficiaries of the policy. 
 
 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 17, 2005 continued…………………………..………….page 7 
 
Vacation: 
Same as set forth in Article 21 of the Stetson Club contract based on length of service to the Village of 
Brockport, except accumulation in excess of 30 days to be worked out with the Mayor and the final right 
to determine vacation is vested with the Mayor.  Unused vacation days will have no monetary value 
upon separation from employment (for any reason) with the Village of Brockport. 
 
Holidays: 
The Chief will receive the paid holidays designated in Article 17 of the Stetson Club contract. 
 
Sick Leave: 
Bank of 240 days that can be used only for catastrophic disease or illness of the Police Chief.  
Accumulation at the rate of one (1) day per month.  Unused sick leave days will have no monetary 
value upon separation from employment (for any reason) with the Village of Brockport. 
 
Personal Leave: 
Five (5) days of personal leave per calendar year, which if unused, will not be accumulated, carried 
over or compensated. 
 
Uniforms: 
Items set forth in Article 15 of the Stetson Club contract will be provided with replacement, substitutions 
and/or exchanges subject to approval of the Mayor.  All items remain Village property, and must be 
returned in good condition upon separation from employment.  Chief will also receive an annual $250 
uniform cleaning allowance, less appropriate deductions. 
 
Vehicle: 
The Village will provide the Chief with a vehicle, which may be used for personal and business 
purposes.  The Village will replace the vehicle at 75,000 miles, or sooner if safety warrants, is the sole 
discretion of the Village Board.  The Village agrees to maintain and repair the vehicle.  The Chief will be 
responsible for paying fuel expenses that are for personal travel, including commuting, outside of the 
Village. 
 
Equipment: 
The Village will provide the Chief with all necessary and reasonable equipment needed to perform his 
job duties, including a desktop computer, cell phone, pager and Palm Pilot, which will remain the 
property of the Village. 
 
Professional Expenses and Fees: 
The Village will reimburse the Chief for reasonable expenses and fees for his attendance at 
professional workshops, seminars and conferences, and for professional memberships (e.g. 
International Association of Chiefs of Police), which are approved by the Mayor and the Board of 
Trustees, with such approval not being unreasonably withheld. 
 
Other benefits: 
No other benefits will be provided to the Chief of Police, unless approved by specific resolution of the 
Village Board of Trustees.  All other items of compensation and benefits previously provided to the 
Chief were revoked by prior Village Board resolution dated August 15, 2005. 
-------------------------------------- 
 
Trustee Maziarz asked Trustee Nayman if this had been drawn up by the Village’s attorneys.  Trustee 
Nayman said yes.  Trustee Maziarz said this is another example of not conducting open government.  
Trustee Maziarz said she never received this until this minute.  Mayor Wexler said it came through 
today and they didn’t know until executive session answered some questions.  Trustee Maziarz asked 
why she was not privy to this until now.  Mayor Wexler said the resolution may be new tonight, but the 
terms and conditions were what was proposed to Chief Varrenti September 28th.  Trustee 
Wagenhauser said this is not what he received in September.  That version had salary options.  Mayor 
Wexler said this is what D. Varrenti received.  Trustee Maziarz said it was without authorization from 
the Board since the last proposal the Board received had 3 options for salary.  Mayor Wexler said one 
of those 3 options were chosen.  Trustee Maziarz asked by whom.  Mayor Wexler said this is what was 
presented when he and I. Coyle spoke with D. Varrenti and Gates Police Chief Roche.  Trustee 
Wagenhauser said he thought it (negotiations) didn’t even get that far.  Mayor Wexler said they started 
with the item that would cost the Village the most significant of money.  When that could not be 



resolved, both sides said there was no sense continuing.  Mayor Wexler said all Trustees received the 
same documentation.  Trustee Maziarz and Trustee Wagenhauser said they did not receive this 
version.  Mayor Wexler said we cleaned it up.  Trustee Maziarz asked who “we” is and why each Board 
member was not privy to it.  Trustee Wagenhauser commented that over a two week span the billing 
shows 15+ phone calls every weekday with attorneys.  He said he never heard a word about them.  
That and the cost concern him.  Trustee Maziarz asked who decided on this salary.  Mayor Wexler said 
the Mayor decided it.  Trustee Nayman said she would not have received it if everyone hadn’t.  She 
suggested Trustee Maziarz double check her files.   
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 17, 2005 continued………………………..…………….page 8 
 
Trustee Maziarz questioned this resolution and contacting the attorneys.  Trustee Nayman said she 
wanted to make a motion and wanted it to be in the correct wording.  Trustee Maziarz said she would 
abstain from any motions involving salary until this situation is resolved.  She said she is 1/5th of this 
Board and deserves to be informed.  She said this is not open government. 
 
Trustee Wagenhauser said 3 members of the Board knew of this and 2 did not.  He said it is only polite 
to let all Board members know.  Trustee Nayman said she explained why she requested resolution 
language.  She said she wanted to be ready so that if she was convinced in the Board’s executive 
session, she could make the motion.  Trustee Wagenhauser asked who was asked.  Mayor Wexler 
said he called Village Labor Attorney David Lippitt this morning in the event that after executive session 
a motion was needed.  Trustee Maziarz asked when he got it.  Mayor Wexler said this afternoon.  
Trustee Maziarz said she was at the Village Hall 2 or 3 times today and the Board met earlier this 
evening in executive session about this matter and proceeding with a resolution was not determined. 
 
→ Trustee Nayman moved, Mayor Wexler seconded, Trustee Castańeda in favor, Trustee Maziarz 
abstained, Trustee Wagenhauser opposed to adopt the resolution and terms and conditions as outlined 
above. 
 
E.     Mayor Wexler  

1. Insufficient Lighting – Mayor Wexler said he received a memo from L. Vaughan on areas in the 
Village with insufficient lighting.  H. Donahue said he received it as well. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  None 
 
Mayor Wexler declared a 5-minute recess at 9:25pm. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
⇒ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried that the Board of 
Trustees of the Village of Brockport enter into an executive session to discuss pending litigation. 
 
I, Leslie A. Morelli, Clerk for the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport, do hereby certify that the 
Board met in an executive session and did discuss the matters as expressed in their motion, and I 
further certify that no formal action regarding public funds was taken thereon. 
 

_________________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 
⇒ Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried that the Board of 
Trustees of the Village of Brockport exit executive session and return to the regular meeting. 
 
AUDIT: 

 Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried that the bills be 
allowed and paid upon audit. 

 
Village 
Date Check #   Amount 
10/6/05 172247  23.90 
10/11/05 172248  3.35 
10/14/05 172249-172296 30,957.47 
10/17/05 172326  150.00 
10/17/05 172309-172325 8,974.21 
Fire 

       10/14/05 172297-172308 3,934.58 
Third Party Billing  
10/14/05 000638 – 000642 9,352.08 
Capital Projects 
10/14/05 001945 – 001951 62,829.25 
Sewer 
Water  

        10/14/05  001247-001256 45,480.98 



 
ADJOURNMENT: 

 Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried that the meeting be 
adjourned at 10:32pm. 

 
__________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 


